
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

January 07, 2020 at 5:30 PM  

Council Meeting Room, 101 North State Street, 
Abbeville, Louisiana 70510 

 

AGENDA 

NOTICE POSTED:  January 6, 2020 at 4:00 P.M.  

REGULAR ORDER OF BUSINESS 

             Call to Order by Mayor 
             Roll Call by Kathy Faulk  
             Prayer 
             Pledge  

PERSONNEL 

MINUTES AND APPROVAL OF BILLS 

1. Ratify bills paid in the month of December 2019. 

2. To approve the minutes from the Committee meeting held on December 3, 2019, the Personnel 

Interviews held on December 17, 2019 and the regular City Council meetings held on December 3, 

2019 and December 17, 2019. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
                  (To allow comments on any of the following items prior to action.) 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. To discuss possible code violations at 1603 Charity Street- Councilwoman Terry Broussard. 

2. Martin Luther King Day activities - Councilwoman Terry Broussard. 

3. To authorize the Mayor to execute all necessary documents to purchase 6.76 acres located adjacent 

to the Abbeville RV Park that would include access to Coulee Kinney - Councilwoman Roslyn White. 

4. To award the bid for asbestos removal at 608 E. Oak Street. 

5. To approve payment number 7 relative to the LCDBG Sewer Rehabilitation project. 

6. To approve change order #2 for the Rehabilitation of the Main Hangar project. 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. None. 

TOPICS FOR DISCUSSION OR REVIEW  

1.        Engineers  

2.        Attorney 

3.        Public Works Director 

4.        Mayor 

5.        Police Chief 

6.        Fire Chief 

7.        Council Members 

ADJOURN 

 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, 
if you need special assistance, please contact 

Mayor Mark Piazza’s office at 337-893-8550, 
describing the assistance that is necessary. 

  

1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



 1 

City of Abbeville 

Committee Meeting  

December 3, 2019 

 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met for a committee meeting on December 3, 

2019 at 5:00 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room located at 101 

North State Street, with the Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members Francis Plaisance, Terry Broussard, Brady 

Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Roslyn 

White  

 

Members Absent: None 

 

Also Present: Ike Funderburk, City Attorney 

 Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

 William Spearman, Police Chief 

 Lee Schexnaider, Wastewater Plant Superintendent 

 Steve Moosa, CPA 

 Gene Sellers, Engineer 

 Joseph Vallee’, Municipal Employees Civil Service Board 

  

     

Mayor Piazza stated we are here for a joint meeting of the Finance Committee and the 

Ordinance Committee.  We have three items on the agenda all pertaining to the budget 

ordinance. He asked if there were any public comments on any agenda item.  There were 

none so he turned the floor over to Councilman Touchet, the Finance Committee Chairman. 

 

Councilman Touchet stated that the first item was the presentation of the budget for 2020 and 

the amendments to the budget for 2019. He turned the floor over to Mr. Steve Moosa to share 

that information with us. Mr. Moosa discussed the 2020 budget and the amendment to the 

2019 budget. In this budget we have the line by line budget for the General fund and for the 

Sales tax funds as required by state law. The budget does account for the required principle 

and interest payments on the debt service. The City is in good shape as far as the debt. We 

have 150 employees with the City. This includes all full-time and part-time employees. The 

budget also includes the pay increases for all City employees from the new sales tax. 

Councilwoman White asked about the pay raises for the City Court employees. Councilman 

Broussard stated these raises are not part of the raises dealing with the sales tax. Mr. Moosa 

stated the general fund revenues are $1.865 million and the special funds revenue are $5.1 

million. A budget for the Utility system fund is not required by state law. The expenditures for 

the general fund are $10.5 million and expenditures for the special revenue funds are 

$989,000. We support the general fund by transfers in from the utility system fund. Mr. Moosa 

stated at the next city Council meeting you will approve the budget for the next fiscal year. 

This is a good balanced budget. Mayor Piazza highlighted two items on page 11 dealing with 

sales tax. We have budgeted money for the website as requested by Councilwoman White. On 

page 12 we have budgeted the City’s match for the streetscape project. That project will be 

beginning January 6, 2020. He also discussed Capital outlay expenditures. These 

expenditures include the completion of the splash pad, the Lafitte walking trail and the 

renovation to the tennis courts.  

 

Councilman Touchet stated the next item is to review and recommend for adoption an 

ordinance amending Chapter 2, sections 2.1 and 2.21. He asked Mr. Ike Funderburk to 

explain the proposed ordinance. Mr. Funderburk stated the Mayor and the Chief of Police 

have their salary fixed by ordinance. The current salary for the Mayor is $67,000 per year 

and for the Chief of Police it is $55,520 per year. He was asked to draft an amendment to 

those ordinances. He left the dollar amounts blank so there could be discussion as to any 

salary modifications that need to be made. If there any changes, it would go into effect at 

some point during the month of January 2020. Councilwoman White stated that she did some 

research to find out when the Chief and the Mayor had received their last pay raise. The last 

time the Mayor received a salary increase was in 2010 and the last time the Chief received a 

pay raise was 2012. She ran some calculations based on a 2% cost-of-living increase like our 

regular employees receive. She took the Mayor’s current salary and added a 2% increase. 

She also did this with a 1.5% increase and a 1% increase. This would give us a starting point 
35



 2 

to calculate from. With a 2% increase the Mayor’s salary in 2019 would be $80,071.20. With 

a 1.5% increase his salary would be $76,607.13. With a 1% increase his salary would be 

$73,276.91. The Chief’s base salary in 2019 would be $63,775.03 with a 2% increase. The 

annual salary would be $69,775.03 including his $6,000 supplemental pay. With a 1.5% 

increase his base salary would be $61,618.59. His total annual salary would be $67,618.59 

with the $6,000 supplemental pay. If we calculated with a 1% increase the base salary would 

be $59,524.95. This would compute to an annual salary of $65,524.95 when the $6,000 

supplemental pay is added in. She would like to see the Mayor making about $77,000 per year 

and the Chief would be at about $65,000 per year plus is $6000 supplemental pay for a total 

annual salary of $71,000. These increases would put the Mayor a little bit above 1.5% and 

the Chief above the 2% mark. Councilman Broussard stated he likes the research and 

homework that Councilwoman White did. He is not sure that the pay rate proposed by 

Councilwoman White would satisfy what the Mayor does for this City and for the hundreds 

that rely on him in this City. He is a tremendous value to the City of Abbeville. Councilman 

Touchet stated that the Mayor would be making less than the people that he supervises. He 

would like to see the Mayor making somewhere between the 1.5% and 2%. He is proposing 

an annual salary for the mayor of $79,000. We will be moving the Chief up too but he also 

gets the benefit of the state supplemental pay of $6,000 per year. He feels like the Chief’s 

salary should be set at $65,000 per year. Councilwoman Broussard thanked Councilwoman 

White for her numbers. She is comfortable with the numbers Councilman Touchet proposed. 

She cannot see an employee making more than the Mayor. Councilman Plaisance also wanted 

to add that the increase for the Mayor and the Police Chief is not associated with the new 

sales tax. The money will be coming from the general fund budget. Mr. Gene Sellers stated 

that he’s been serving this City for 60 years and he works closely with the Mayor and the 

Mayor’s pay should be above any City employee. Mr. Joseph Vallee’ stated he is okay with 

the increase too. He has been a great Mayor for all of these years. Mayor Piazza stated he 

appreciates anything and wherever the numbers fall he will be okay and very grateful.  He is 

satisfied with whatever they feel his salary should be. 

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to 

recommend an ordinance for adoption to the City Council at their meeting scheduled for 

December 17, 2019, amending Chapter 2, Sections 2.1 and 2.21 whereby setting the annual 

salary for the Mayor at $79,000 per year and for the Chief of Police at $65,000 per year to be 

paid from the General Fund budget.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-02 introduced by Ms. Roslyn White and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to recommend to 

the City Council to adopt an ordinance at the December 17, 2019 meeting, to adopt the 2020 

budget, including the recent recommendations for amendments to Chapter 2 pertaining to the 

Mayor and Police Chief’s salary, and amending the 2019 budget.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Piazza declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Mark Piazza 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

36



1 
 

City of Abbeville 

Regular Meeting 

December 17, 2019 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in regular session on December 17, 2019 at 

5:30 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room located at 101 North State 

Street, with the Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members, Francis Plaisance, Terry Broussard, Brady 

Broussard, Jr. and Roslyn White   

 

Members Absent:  Councilman Francis Touchet, Jr.   

 

Also, Present:   Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

    Bill Spearman, Police Chief 

    Ike Funderburk, City Attorney 

Clay Menard, Public Works Director 

Tom Carroll, Engineer 

Richard Primeaux, Engineer 

Joseph Vallee’, Municipal Civil Service Board 

        

Mayor Piazza asked Chief Bill Spearman to lead the assembly in prayer.   Mayor Piazza asked 

Lieutenant Jason Hebert to lead the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to ratify the hiring 

of Tyrone Alexander, Desiree Stonecall and Jacoby Biscoe to the Abbeville Police Department, 

pending successful completion of all post-hire assessments.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to ratify bills paid in 

the month of November 2019.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor Piazza asked if there were any comments from the public on any agenda item.  There were 

none. 

 

B. Broussard/White 

Ordinance 19-09 

 

An ordinance to amend Chapter 2, Section 2.1 and 2.21 pertaining to the increase in salary of the 

Mayor and Chief of Police. 

 

The motion was put to a vote and the vote thereon was as follows: 

 YEAS:  4(Plaisance, T. Broussard, B. Broussard, White) 

 NAYS:  0 

 ABSENT: 1(Touchet) 

 ABSTAIN: 0 

Therefore, the ordinance was adopted. 

 

-03 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to enter into a public 

hearing to discuss the proposed budget for 2020 and the amended budget for 2019.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

37



2 
 

Mayor Piazza stated we are now in a public hearing to discuss the 2020 budget and the 

amendments to the 2019 budget.  It would be appropriate at this time for anyone in the audience 

to make comments pertaining to this issue.  There were none.  Mayor Piazza stated that we went 

through the budget in great detail at the last Finance Committee meeting held on December 3, 

2019.  The budget was presented by Mr. Steve Moosa.  We are presenting a very good balanced 

budget with a small surplus.  It will be work in progress as budgets are a guideline.  Overtime will 

have to monitored.  We have a good budget with a healthy reserve balance.  He is comfortable 

presenting the budget tonight. The budget has been advertised and available for public inspection 

for the required number of days.  Councilman Broussard stated that the commitment of the Mayor 

and the Council to control overtime in the 2020 budget is an important part of the budget.  We 

are committed to control that component of the budget.  Councilman Plaisance stated that he is 

pleased with the support of the public for the new tax and we will be able to implement the raises 

in the 2020 budget as a result of the new tax.  We will also bring the Mayor and Chief of Police 

salaries to a competitive level with surrounding cities.  Their raise is not from the new sales tax 

but from the General Fund budget.   

 

-04 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to close the public 

hearing and reconvene the regular meeting.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Plaisance/T. Broussard 

Ordinance 19-10 

 

An ordinance adopting the 2020 budget and amending the 2019 budget. 

 

The motion was put to a vote and the vote thereon was as follows: 

 YEAS:  4(Plaisance, T. Broussard, B. Broussard, White) 

 NAYS:  0 

 ABSENT: 1(Touchet) 

 ABSTAIN: 0 

Therefore, the ordinance was adopted. 

 

Hearings were to be held on the condemnation of the following property with the property owners 

or their designees:  1507 Franks Alley, 207 S. Gertrude, 1728 Franks Alley and 309 9th Street. 

 

1507 Franks Alley – represented by Ricky LaFleur, attorney.  Mr. LaFleur stated he is the 

appointed representative of the estate of Beatrice Bruno.  She is the record owner of the property.  

He was appointed by Mr. Funderburk because the succession has not yet been opened.  His duty 

is to try to find the family of Ms. Beatrice Bruno to let them know this is going on.  He is trying to 

locate the son.  He has spoken to the property owners around the property but they do not know 

where he is.  Mr. Funderburk stated this was all done so we could file suit since there was no 

representative that we could serve.  The property was inspected by Clay Menard on November 

27, 2019.  It was found that the cost to repair the structure to current code outweighs the cost to 

demolish the property, therefore, the property should be condemned and demolished.  He 

recommended that the Council proceed with the condemnation of the property.   

 

-05 introduced by Ms. Roslyn White and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to condemn the 

structure located at 1507 Franks Alley and proceed with the demotion process.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

207 S. Gertrude – no representative.  Mr. Funderburk stated that the inspection was completed 

by Mr. Menard on December 4, 2019.  He went to the site and found the cost to repair the 

38



3 
 

structure to current code outweighs the cost to demolish the property, therefore the property 

should be condemned and demolished.  Councilwoman Broussard stated that Ms. Adams had 

purchased the permit to demolish the property but it expired after 90 days and nothing was done.  

She would like to make contact with Ms. Adams and get back with the tax department. 

 

-06 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to condemn the 

structure located at 207 S. Gertrude but allow Councilwoman Broussard an opportunity to meet 

and negotiate with the property owner and report back to the tax department before the 

demolition process begins.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

1728 Franks Alley – represented by Kimberly Bolden.  Mr. Funderburk stated that Mr. Menard 

completed the inspection of the property on November 27, 2019 and found the cost to repair the 

structure to current code outweighed the cost to demolish, therefore it should be condemned and 

demolished.  Ms. Bolden would like to repair the property.  She has small children and would like 

to pass something on to them.  She had someone living in the property but they moved out in 

January 2019.  She lives in Lafayette and right now she is dealing with her children (twins) that 

have health issues.  This is more important than this property so she comes here very seldom.  She 

has boarded up the property but when she does come down here, the boards have been removed.  

She has to pay someone to put the boards back up which takes money out of her kids’ mouths.  

She thinks this is being done intentionally because the neighbors want to buy her property.  She 

has all this documented on her phone.  Councilwoman Broussard asked Ms. Bolden how long 

would it take to repair the property and will when the work begin.  Ms. Bolden stated the only 

thing that needs to be repaired is the back section of the roof.  It has a leak.  Sheetrock will also 

have to be repaired because of the leak.  This is not major and she does not understand why it 

was deemed unlivable.  She could go right now, change the door locks, change the floor which 

has rotted away because of the roof leaking and repair the sheetrock and it could be lived in.  It 

has been leaking like this for over a year.  She will start on this once she is finish dealing with her 

babies.  Councilwoman Broussard stated that as long as those complaints continue, the letters 

won’t stop and sooner or later the City will be forced to take action.  Councilwoman Broussard 

wanted to grant the property owner until March (90 days) to bring this property into compliance.  

Ms. Bolden stated that she is having surgery in March.  Councilwoman Broussard stated then we 

will give until February.  Ms. Bolden stated the only thing she can do is board it up.  This has been 

going on.  Councilwoman Broussard agreed that this has been going on a long time but nothing 

has been done.  Mayor Piazza asked if Ms. Bolden owns the lot too.  Mr. Menard stated he 

inspected the property but could only see through the windows.  There is some structural damage 

from the roof leaking over a period of time.  The floors are gone and the doors were open as far 

as he could tell.  There were some parts of the house he could not see.  There are some supports 

that are rotten and it will cost a good bit of money to get the house repaired from what he could 

see.  Ms. Bolden offered to accompany Mr. Menard on a walk through of the property.  

Councilwoman White asked if we received responses from the certified letters that were sent.  

Mayor Piazza answered yes.  Councilwoman Broussard asked Ms. Bolden when she will be able 

to make repairs to the property so that the City won’t have to continue contacting her because 

the windows are broken or the doors are being kicked in.  This is what happens to homes that are 

not being occupied.  This is what happens in today’s world.  She needs to know this from Ms. 

Bolden because, right now, she is leaning towards March.  We could work with you up until March 

to get the repairs done and she cannot give anymore time.  This issue has been going on a very 

long time.   Ms. Bolden stated she cannot get anything done by March.  Mayor Piazza asked Ms. 

Bolden how long would it take her to get the roof repaired and the doors and windows secured.  

Ms. Bolden stated she could do the doors and windows now.  Mayor Piazza stated the roof needs 

to be repaired too because just securing the doors and windows will not do any good if the roof 

is not repaired.  We do not want vandalism in there and people going in and out of there.  This 

39



4 
 

structure was brought before the Council because we received complaints from the neighbors.  

Ms. Bolden stated that they will continue to receive complaints from the neighbors because that 

is who wants to buy the property.  Mayor Piazza stated the grass was not cut all summer long 

and we had to send someone twice this summer to cut the grass.  Ms. Bolden stated the City can 

do what they want and she will hire an attorney.  She hired Darrell Thibodeaux to cut the grass.  

The grass did get tall but whoever is telling you they are cutting the grass is not telling the truth 

because Darrell Thibodeaux has been cutting the grass.  Mayor Piazza asked Ms. Bolden, again, 

how long would it take her to complete the repairs.  Ms. Bolden stated she would like until the 

end of April 2020.  She does not have time to be dealing with this right now because she has more 

important thing to deal with.  Councilwoman White asked Mr. Funderburk about our ordinance 

dealing with tarps on the roof.  Mr. Funderburk stated a tarp is an approved device for an interim 

but it is not a final repair.  That is according to State building codes.   

 

-07 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard to condemn the structure located at 1728 Franks Alley 

and to give the property owner until April 15, 2020 to make the repairs.  If the repairs are not 

made by then the City will begin the demolition process.  The motion died for lack of a second. 

 

-08 introduced by Ms. Roslyn White and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to condemn the 

structure located at 1728 Franks Alley and to move forward with the demolition process.  The 

motion was put to a vote and the vote thereon was as follows: 

 YEAS:  3(Plaisance, B. Broussard, White) 

 NAYS:  1(T. Broussard) 

 ABSENT: 1(Touchet) 

 ABSTAIN: 0 

Therefore, the motion carried. 

 

309 9th Street – represented by Robert Kelly, Sandra Cain and Shirley Grogan.  Mr. Kelly stated 

he lives in Texas and has been getting these letters.  Two years ago, he came here and paid the 

taxes and he noticed they had a raggedy mobile home on the property.  He went to his cousin and 

asked her about the mobile home and who had given permission to place that on the property.  

We do not know anything about that.  When he got home, he contacted the tax office and brought 

it to their attention.  He did not give permission for a mobile home to be moved onto the property.  

We had problems before when his nephew wanted to but a trailer there and she (Shirley Grogan) 

would not allow him to put it there but she did allow this gentleman’s girlfriend to put that mobile 

home there.  That thing is not livable and it is not worth fixing.  It needs to be removed from the 

property.  If they tear it down, then they will leave all the trash on the property and then we will 

be bothered again.  I came today because of the certified letter he received from the tax office.  

He is part owner of the property.  Only one person takes it into her own hands to tell people what 

they can do with the property.  That is not right because we have to pay taxes too.  We inherited 

this from our grandmother through our parents.  When his father died, we inherited his part.  She 

needs to consult all of us in order to do something on that property.  The trailer needs to be gone.  

He will only accept demolition is if the City does it.  They will not do it.  Mayor Piazza asked if the 

family wants to evict him off of the property.  Mr. Kelly stated he has no business putting the 

trailer there.  He is not family.  Councilwoman Broussard asked if the family is giving permission 

to go on the property and demolish the mobile home.  Mr. Kelly stated yes but he is not paying 

any money.  Councilwoman Broussard wanted the family to understand that the cost of 

demolition has to be put against the property as a lien.  Mr. Kelly again stated that he is not 

paying anything.  He would agree to the mobile home being removed and hauled off by the owner.  

They need to pay for that because they put it there.  Ms. Sandra Cain stated that the people who 

put the trailer should have to tear the trailer down because she will not pay for something that 

she did not put there.  Let them do it.  Mr. Funderburk stated that on co-owned property, 

40



5 
 

everybody has the same rights as everybody else.  So, if I am a co-owner of property, I can possess 

the entirety of the property to the exclusion of everyone else if they acquiesce. That is obviously 

what we have in this situation.  The trailer doesn’t belong to the landowners but unfortunately, it 

is the land that is going to wind up being liened for the cost of the demolition of the trailer unless 

the owner of the trailer does what he should have done a long time ago which is removing the 

trailer from the property.  This would solve the problem for the landowner.  Ms. Shirley Grogan 

stated that she gave permission to put the trailer there.  She (the girlfriend of the gentleman) said 

she was going to have the trailer redone but she did not.  I have been telling her to get it off the 

property.  My mother was the owner and she passed away so I am the owner.  It is dangerous to 

have that on the property.  People can go in there and hide and we do not want that.  She is not 

for trouble.  She wants it torn down or removed.  She asked if she could have until January 31, 

2020 to have the trailer removed off of the property.  Councilwoman Broussard stated she was 

willing to give until January 31, 2020 and she remined Ms. Grogan that they will have to come 

into the tax office and get a demolition permit.  They are responsible for hauling what they tear 

down to the solid waste facility.  They are responsible for the total cleanup.  If the City has to come 

in because it is not done, there will be a lien on the property.   

 

-09 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to condemn the 

structure located at 309 9th Street and grant the property owners until January 31, 2020 to 

remove or demolish the structure or the City will begin the demolition process.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

B. Broussard/Plaisance 

Resolution R19-30 

 

A resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an agreement with Acadiana Broadband. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Plaisance/B. Broussard 

Resolution R19-31 

 

A resolution declaring the legal holidays the City will observe for the calendar year 2020. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

B. Broussard/Plaisance 

Resolution R19-32 

 

A resolution requesting Louisiana DOTD to augment the signage for truck routes around and 

through the City of Abbeville. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-10 introduced by Ms. Roslyn White and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to approve change 

order number 1, to increase the contract time by 30 days, for the addition of the new headworks 

mechanical screen at the Wastewater Treatment Facility project.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-11 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to approve partial 

payment number 1 in the amount of $193,455.00 payable to TyBe Company, LLC for the addition 

41



6 
 

of new headworks mechanical screen at the Wastewater Treatment Facility project.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

Plaisance/White 

Resolution R19-33 

 

A resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute all agreements with Louisiana DOTD relative to the 

Rehabilitate T-Hangar Taxilanes & Apron – Phase 1 (design) project.   

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-12 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to approve 

application for payment number 3 in the amount of $36,445.02 payable to L. Michaud 

Construction for the Rehabilitation of the Main Hangar project.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Tom Carroll, Engineer 

- Wished everyone a Merry Christmas and a Happy New Year. 

 

Richard Primeaux, Engineer 

- Wished everyone a Merry Christmas and a Happy New Year. 

- Drainage grant project is progressing.  We are meeting to try to get the utilities located in 

order to minimize those costs. 

 

Ike Funderburk, City Attorney 

- Wished everyone a Merry Christmas and a Happy New Year. 

 

Clay Menard, Public Works Director 

- Wished everyone a Merry Christmas and a Happy New Year. 

 

Mayor Mark Piazza 

- He hopes everyone has a safe, eventful and family oriented Christmas and New Year’s.  He 

hopes you get to spend some time with family and friends as he plans on doing. 

- We have a few projects that we are doing our best to get completed by year-end.  Clay 

and Larry and his crew have been working diligently to get the splashpad formed up so we 

can have the kids out there by the spring.  It is going well.  Weather permitting, we will 

have that done.  We have some really nice projects to look forward to this spring. 

 

Lieutenant Jason Hebert 

- Wished everyone Happy Holidays. 

 

Councilwoman Roslyn White 

- Wished everyone Happy Holidays. 

 

Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr. 

- The decades awaited streetscape grant project will start on January 6, 2020 in our 

downtown area.  It will start at the corner of Black’s old restaurant.   

- Wanted to make a comment about blighted property.  We had some citizens here today 

where it had reached a point where the Mayor and Council wanted to talk to them about 

their solutions to their blight.  Blight lowers property value around it.  Blight invites rodents 

to a neighborhood.  Blight is an invitation for crime all hours of the night.  This Council will 

work with anyone who owns property but we have to start looking out for the neighbors 

42



7 
 

of these properties that are the subject of blight.  So, he thanks this Council for focusing 

on blight.  He thanks Sarah and Theresa in the tax department.  We will fight this head on.  

If someone comes to the Council meeting, we do want to talk to them.  There is no excuse 

for blight.  If you own property, it is your responsibility. 

 

Councilwoman Terry Broussard 

- Thanked everyone for coming out tonight for the meeting. 

- Wished everyone a Merry Christmas and a Happy New Year.  May you and your family be 

blessed with love, joy, peace and happiness.  May everyone be safe.  Remember to keep 

our employees in your prayers.  They are the ones that make it happen for us.  Thank you, 

guys, so much. 

 

Councilman Francis Plaisance 

- It is nice to be able to end the year with a successful budget and a successful year. 

- Would like to see us focus in 2020 on empty buildings, especially businesses.  Hopefully we 

can work in that direction. 

- Wished everyone a Merry Christmas and a Happy New Year.  He hopes that everyone can 

visit with family and eat good food. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Piazza declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk     Mark Piazza 

Secretary-Treasurer     Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

43



1 
 

City of Abbeville 

Regular Meeting 

December 3, 2019 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in regular session on December 3, 2019 at 

5:30 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room located at 101 North State 

Street, with the Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members, Francis Plaisance, Terry Broussard, Brady 

Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Roslyn 

White   

 

Members Absent:  None    

 

Also, Present:   Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

    Bill Spearman, Police Chief 

    Ike Funderburk, City Attorney 

Clay Menard, Public Works Director 

Donna Baudoin, Retired City Employee 

Gene Sellers, Engineer 

Richard Primeaux, Engineer 

Corey LeBlanc, Architect 

        

Mayor Piazza asked Ms. Sandra Marant to lead the assembly in prayer.   Mayor Piazza asked Mr. 

Ike Funderburk to lead the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

Mayor Piazza presented a certificate of appreciation from the City to Mrs. Donna Baudoin.  She 

had recently retired from the City after 39 years of service.  Mayor Piazza read the certificate of 

appreciation aloud. 

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to approve the 

minutes from the November 19, 2019 regular City Council meeting.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

Mayor Piazza asked if there were any comments from the public on any agenda item.  There were 

none. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to award the 

bid for abatement for rubbish at 208 Alleman Street to Elbert Dawson in the amount of $300.00.  

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-03 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to award the bid 

for abatement of rubbish and cutting of grass and weeds at 1109 Vernon Street to Elbert Dawson 

in the amount of $445.00.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-04 introduced by Ms. Roslyn White and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to table awarding 

the bid for abatement of rubbish at 808 N. East Street since the bid was so high ($4,500) and to 

revisit the issue at a later date once other options are researched.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

44



2 
 

Chief Mire discussed the recent fire rating results.  In the state of Louisiana there are 600 different 

cities and districts that are rated.  There are 9 of them that have a rating of 1, 35 that are rated 

at 2 and the City of Abbeville received a rating of 3.  This is the same rating that we have been for 

several years.  In 2014 our score was 74 out of a scale of 105.  You get points based on 

communication, trucks, training and other things.  All these points add up and that is shown on 

the report that was distributed to you tonight.  In 2019 our score was 78.3.  We are very close to 

a 2.  We will meet in January with the gentleman that rated us.  He will point out to us what we 

were deficient in and what we can improve on.  The big thing that the Chief is trying to work out 

with the parish is to get the training center.  If we had a training center, we would have received 

an additional 3 points so we may have been a 2 rating.  That would have put us in the top 40 

departments in the state of Louisiana.  We are rated every 5 years.  Mayor Piazza stated it is 

important to mention, since a lot of people don’t understand the significance of the fire rating, 

that this directly affects your homeowner’s premiums for homeowner insurance.  It also affects 

your business insurance for your fire premiums.  The lower the rating, the lower your premiums 

will be for 5 years.  Since we are at a 3 and we have been at a 3, our insurance premiums for fire 

protection will not go up.   

 

-05 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to adopt a sexual 

harassment policy in keeping with Act 270 of the regular session of the 2018 Legislature.  The 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

-06 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to approve pay 

application #15 in the amount of $46,738.71 payable to Minvielle Lumber for retainage and a 

portion of the punch list and the invoice from The Sellers Group, both for the Airport Terminal 

Building Renovation project.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Councilman Touchet asked for an update on the chicken issue on South St. Valerie.  He asked Mr. 

Funderburk to provide the update.  Mr. Funderburk stated we asked the Chief of Police to take 

pictures. He did and Mr. Funderburk has the pictures. Mr. Funderburk met with Mr. Thibodeaux 

and Mr. Thibodeaux indicated that he would make another effort to get videos. Be that as it may, 

this thing has lingered on for a long time. He referred to section 4.1 in the ordinances, definitions. 

A person who has possession of the chicken must keep control of the chicken with a secure fence. 

One of the properties has no fencing at all. The other property has fencing that is inadequate to 

hold the chickens. Ike will file criminal charges against the property owners. Ike stated we have 

already sent letters. Mayor Piazza stated that it will take something more forceful than a letter 

from the tax department. Ike stated we will have Mr. Thibodeaux testify in court and we will 

present the documents filed by the tax and permit department and we will present the picture as 

evidence. We will file criminal charges at City court and they will be summoned to come to court 

by subpoena.  We will have a warrant out for their arrest.  

 

Clay Menard, Public Works Director 

- Councilman Plaisance asked about the hole on Rodeo Road left by the sewer project 

contractor.  Clay stated the contractor cannot fix the issue permanently until is settles.  

They dug down 10 feet so it will take a long time to settle and compact.  We continue to 

add limestone and dress it up as it settles.  Once it settles completely, the contractor will 

make the permanent repair.  That is part of the LCDBG and it is part of the contractor’s 

punch list.  If we could get some more rain, it would help to compact it. 

- Councilwoman Broussard asked Clay to meet with here in front of Pleasant Green Church 

to discuss holes in front of the church.  She also wanted to meet with him to discuss the 

Martin Luther King Street project. 

 

45



3 
 

Mayor Mark Piazza 

- He appreciates the support of the Council not only for himself but for the Police Chief and 

for all the City employees. This is been a very trying year and trying experience for all of 

us. Nobody likes taxes. Our employees are the beneficiaries of a nice salary increase as 

well as himself and the Police Chief. We will see the results in long-term with better quality 

personnel and the ability to hire better personnel. It will provide a better work 

environment and we will see productivity increase out there. This will improve the morale 

of the employees and it will be a different situation than what we are having now. These 

were not easy decisions to make. He’s a business owner he knows what it’s like. In the long 

run, the City will be much better off due to the efforts we made this year. We have made 

tougher decisions this year than we have had to make in the past five years. He thanked 

the new City Councilwomen for their research and their homework to make these 

decisions. They did not take these decisions lightly. 

 

Bill Spearman, Chief of Police 

- He thanked all the Council members for his raise.  The officers are looking forward to their 

raise and it is well deserved. 

 

Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

- Thanked the Mayor and Council for their support. 

 

Councilman Francis Plaisance 

- The Christmas parade will be Saturday night at 6:00 PM. 

 

Councilwoman Terry Broussard 

- She will be having her first Christmas event for underprivileged children on Friday.  This 

will serve all children throughout the City of Abbeville.  She is asking for everyone to donate 

a toy for the children.  We will collect toys until the 13th or 14th of this month. 

 

Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr. 

- This Thursday, December 5, 2019, is the Christmas Stroll.  On Saturday, December 7, 2019, 

we will have a Farmers’ Market in the morning, the parade at 6:00 PM and then a free 

movie in the Square after the parade. 

 

Councilwoman Roslyn White 

- Stated she would contact Chief Mire to schedule a grand opening of the new Fire Station. 

- We will also have Painting under the Oaks on Saturday, December 7, 2019.  This will be 

available in Magdalen Square.  You will be able to paint some streetscapes of the City for 

a fee of $25.  There are still a few spots available.  All of this in on the Facebook page as 

well as the City website if you need more information. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Piazza declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Mark Piazza 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor  

 

 

46



1 
 

City of Abbeville 

Council personnel interviews 

December 17, 2019 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met for personnel interviews on December 17, 

2019 at 5:00 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room located at 101 North 

State Street, with the Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members, Francis Plaisance, Terry Broussard, Brady 

Broussard and Roslyn White    

 

Members Absent:  Councilman Francis Touchet, Jr.   

 

Also Present:   Bill Spearman, Police Chief 

     

Mayor Piazza stated we are here to interview personnel for the Police Department.  There are 

three applicants to interview.  

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to enter into 

executive session to interview applicants for the Police Department.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to reconvene 

the meeting from executive session.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Piazza declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Mark Piazza 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor  

47



48



49



INVOICE
* Forward to Accounts Payable *

REFERENCE

Invoice #:
Invoice Date:
Order Date:
Appr. File #:
Case #:
Client File #:
PO #:
Tracking #:

BILL TO

DESCRIPTION

Borrower:
Property Address:

BILLING AMOUNT

$

Total $

Payment 1 Check #: Date: ( )
Payment 2 Check #: Date: ( )

Terms: Balance Due $
Federal Tax #:

* Please Return This Portion With Your Payment *

PAYMENT

FROM

SEND PAYMENT TO

PAYMENT

Amount Due: $

Amount Enclosed: $

Invoice #:
Invoice Date:
Appr. File #:
Case #:

Abbeville, LA 70511-0876

PO Box 876

LaPorte Appraisal Service

L19-363

12/16/2019

L19-363

650.00

Abbeville, LA 70511-0876

PO Box 876

LaPorte Appraisal Service

Abbeville, LA 70510

101 N. State Street

City of Abbeville

Mayor Mark Piazza

650.00

PLEASE INCLUDE FILE # WITH PAYMENT

72-1253867

Payable upon reciept of invoice 650.00

650.00Appraisal Fee......................

Abbeville, LA  70510

TBD W. Port Street

11/06/2019

L19-363

City of Abbeville

Abbeville, LA 70510

101 N. State Street

City of Abbeville

Mayor Mark Piazza

12/16/2019

L19-363

50



File No.

APPRAISAL OF

LOCATED AT:

FOR:

BORROWER:

AS OF:

BY:

L19-363

LaPorte Appraisal Service

LA Certified Residential Real Estate Appraiser #R0672

Troy  LaPorte

December 10, 2019

City of Abbeville

Abbeville, LA, 70510

101 N. State Street

City of Abbeville

Abbeville, LA  70510

TBD W. Port Street

Vacant Land (6.76 acre+-)

PO Box 876, Abbeville, LA 70511-0876
51



File No.

File Number:

In accordance with your request, I have appraised the real property at:

The purpose of this appraisal is to develop an opinion of the market value of the subject property, as vacant.
The property r ights appraised are the fee simple interest in the site.

In my opinion, the market value of the property as of i s :

The at tached repor t  conta ins the descr ip t ion,  analys is  and suppor t ive data for  the conclus ions,
f inal  opinion of  value, descr ipt ive photographs, l imi t ing condi t ions and appropr iate cert i f icat ions.

L19-363

LaPorte Appraisal Service

LA Certified Residential Real Estate Appraiser #R0672

Troy  LaPorte

Respectfully submitted,

Nineteen Thousand  Dollars

$19,000

December 10, 2019

Abbeville, LA  70510

TBD W. Port Street

Mayor Piazza:

L19-363

Abbeville, LA, 70510

101 N. State Street

City of Abbeville

Mayor Mark Piazza

12/16/2019

PO Box 876, Abbeville, LA 70511-0876
52



File No.LAND APPRAISAL REPORT
Property Address Census Tract

City County State Zip Code

Legal Description

Owner/Occupant Map Reference

Sale Price $ Date of Sale

Loan charges/concessions to be paid by seller $

R.E. Taxes $ Tax Year HOA $/Mo.

Lender/Client

LENDER DISCRETIONARY USE

Sale Price $

Date

Mortgage Amount $

Mortgage Type

Discount Points and Other Concessions

Paid by Seller $

Source

Property Rights Appraised

Fee Simple

Leashold

Condominium (HUD/VA)

PUD

S
U

B
J

E
C

T

LOCATION Urban Suburban Rural

BUILT UP Over 75% 25-75% Under 25%

GROWTH RATE Rapid Stable Slow

PROPERTY VALUES Increasing Stable Declining

DEMAND/SUPPLY Shortage In Balance Over Supply

MARKETING TIME Under 3 Mos. 3-6 Mos. Over 6 Mos.

PRESENT LAND USE %

Single Family

2-4 Family

Multi-Family

Commercial

Industrial

Vacant

LAND USE CHANGE

Not Likely

Likely

In process

To:

PREDOMINANT

OCCUPANCY

Owner

Tenant

Vacant (0-5%)

Vacant (over 5%)

SINGLE FAMILY HOUSING

PRICE AGE

$(000) (yrs)

Low

High

Predominant

-

NEIGHBORHOOD ANALYSIS Good Avg. Fair Poor

Employment Stability

Convenience to Employment

Convenience to Shopping

Convenience to Schools

Adequacy of Public Transportation

Recreation Facilities

Adequacy of Facilities

Property Compatibility

Protection from Detrimental Cond.

Police & Fire Protection

General Appearance of Properties

Appeal to Market

Note: Race or the racial composition of the neighborhood are not considered reliable appraisal factors. COMMENTS:

N
E

IG
H

B
O

R
H

O
O

D

Dimensions

Site Area Corner Lot

Zoning Classification Zoning Compliance

HIGHEST & BEST USE: Present Use Other Use

UTILITIES Public Other

Electricity

Gas

Water

Sanitary Sewer

Storm Sewer

SITE IMPROVEMENTS Type Public Private

Street

Curb/Gutter

Sidewalk

Street Lights

Alley

Topography

Size

Shape

Drainage

View

Landscaping

Driveway

Apparent Easements

FEMA Flood Hazard Yes* No

FEMA* Map/Zone

Comments (Apparent adverse easements, encroachments, special assessments, slide areas, etc.):

S
IT

E

T h e  u n d e r s i g n e d  h a s  r e c i t e d  t h r e e  r e c e n t  s a l e s  o f  p r o p e r t i e s  m o s t  s i m i l i a r  a n d  p r o x i m a t e  t o  s u b j e c t  a n d  h a s  c o n s i d e r e d  t h e s e  i n  t h e  m a r k e t  a n a l y s i s .   T h e  d e s c r i p t i o n  i n c l u d e s  a  d o l l a r
a d j u s t m e n t ,  r e f l e c t i n g  m a r k e t  r e a c t i o n  t o  t h o s e  i t e m s  o f  s i g n i f i c a n t  v a r i a t i o n  b e t w e e n  t h e  s u b j e c t  a n d  c o m p a r a b l e  p r o p e r t i e s .   I f  a  s i g n i f i c a n t  i t e m  i n  t h e  c o m p a r a b l e  p r o p e r t y  i s  s u p e r i o r

t o ,  o r  m o r e  f a v o r a b l e  t h a n ,  t h e  s u b j e c t  p r o p e r t y ,  a  m i n u s  ( - )  a d j u s t m e n t  i s  m a d e ,  t h u s  r e d u c i n g  t h e  i n d i c a t e d  v a l u e  o f  s u b j e c t ;  i f  a  s i g n i f i c a n t  i t e m  i n  t h e  c o m p a r a b l e  i s  i n f e r i o r  t o ,
o r  l e s s  f a v o r a b l e  t h a n ,  t h e  s u b j e c t  p r o p e r t y ,  a  p l u s  ( + )  a d j u s t m e n t  i s  m a d e ,  t h u s  i n c r e a s i n g  t h e  i n d i c a t e d  v a l u e  o f  t h e  s u b j e c t .

ITEM

Address

Proximity to Subject

Sales Price

Price/

Data Source

VALUE ADJUSTMENTS

Sales or Financing

Concessions

Date of Sale/Time

Location

Site/View

Net Adj. (total)

Indicated Value

of Subject

SUBJECT

$

$

DESCRIPTION

COMPARABLE NO. 1

$

$

DESCRIPTION +(-)$ Adjustment

+ - $

$

COMPARABLE NO. 2

$

$

DESCRIPTION +(-)$ Adjustment

+ - $

$

COMPARABLE NO. 3

$

$

DESCRIPTION +(-)$ Adjustment

+ - $

$

Comments of Sales Comparison:

S
A

L
E

S
 C

O
M

P
A

R
IS

O
N

 A
N

A
L

Y
S

IS

Comments and Conditions of Appraisal:

Final Reconciliation:

I (WE) ESTIMATE THE MARKET VALUE, AS DEFINED, OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY AS OF to be $

I (We) certify:  that to the best of my (our) knowledge and belief, the facts and data used herein are true and correct; that I (we) personally inspected the subject property

and inspected all comparable sales cited in this report; and that I (we) have no undisclosed interest, present or prospective therein.

Appraiser(s) Review Appraiser Did Did Not
(if applicable) Inspect Property

R
E

C
O

N
C

IL
IA

T
IO

N

Proprietary Land Form 04/88 Produced using ACI software, 800.234.8727 www.aciweb.com

L19-363

X

101 N. State Street, Abbeville, LA 70510

City of Abbeville

N/A201919.00

N/A

N/AN/A

G19F.N. Hollier hiers (Owner)

Attached

70510LAVermilionAbbeville

9506.00TBD W. Port Street

The immediate subject neighborhood 

is located accessible to all amenities in and around the Abbeville area.  Appeal and marketability of the subject area appears to be typical 

of the "general" subject market.

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

40

75

0

125

250

30

X

X

X

20%

5%

20%

5%

50%

X

X

X

X

X

X

This appraisal is made under the extraordinary 

assumption that no adverse easements, encroachments, environmental conditions, etc. exists.  The subject is bordered to the North by 

Coulee Kinney.  Legal access appears to be via "40' reserved for road" (see plat) from W. Port St.  Legal access should be confirmed.

AE

See comment

None

Heavily wooded

Wooded/Coulee

Appears Adequate

Approximatley Rectangular

Typical for Area

Basically Level

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

AgriculturalRecreational

N/A (no zoning)No zoning

No6.76 acres

N/A

PRIVATEAccess

6.76 acresSite size

Wooded/Coulee

Suburban

Acre

N/A

Abbeville

TBD W. Port St.

2,848

800X

-800PRIVATE

9.595 acres

Wooded

Suburban

05/26/2016

Conv;0

ArmLth

Public Records #2016004866

3,648

35,000

2.30 miles NE

Abbeville, LA 70510

TBD Lyman Street

2,200

800X

-800PRIVATE

5.7 acres

Cleared

Suburban

09/06/2019

Conv;0

ArmLth

RAAMLS #19008152

3,000

17,355

3.70 miles SW

Kaplan, LA 70548

LA Highway 695

4,867

1,800X

-800PRIVATE

-1,0003 acres

Cleared

Suburban

06/06/2017

Conv;0

ArmLth

Public Rec. #2017005289

6,667

20,000

2.26 miles NE

Abbeville, LA 70510

TBD Lyman Street

The comparable sales contained herein are considered to be excellent indicators of value to the subject 

primarily due to similar "PRIVATE" access.  However, adjustments were made on all three comparable properties due to their "Cleared" 

private access. The subject's legal access does not appear to be cleared or accessible by vehicle at the present time.

Troy  LaPorte

19,000December 10, 2019

The sales comparison analysis was the primary method employed in arriving at a final estimate of value for the subject 

property.  The "adjusted" indicated value of the subject is approximately $2,800/acre.

It is an extraordinary assumption of this appraisal that legal access to the subject does exist (as per plat).

LaPorte Appr. Svc.
53



File No.

DEFINITION OF MARKET VALUE: The most probable price which a property should bring in a competitive and open market

under all conditions requisite to a fair sale, the buyer and seller, each acting prudently, knowledgeably and assuming the price is not

affected by undue stimulus.  Implicit in this definition is the consummation of a sale as of a specified date and the passing of title from

seller to buyer under conditions whereby: (1) buyer and seller are typically motivated; (2) both parties are well informed or well advised,

and each acting in what he considers his own best interest; (3) a reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market; (4) payment

is made in terms of cash in U.S. dollars or in terms of financial arrangements comparable thereto; and (5) the price represents the normal

consideration for the property sold unaffected by special or creative financing or sales concessions* granted by anyone associated with the

sale.

*Adjustments to the comparables must be made for special or creative financing or sales concessions.  No adjustments are necessary for

those costs which are normally paid by sellers as a result of tradition or law in a market area; these costs are readily identifiable since the

seller pays these costs in virtually all sales transactions.  Special or creative financing adjustments can be made to the comparable property

by comparisons to financing terms offered by a third party institutional lender that is not already involved in the property or transaction.  Any

adjustment should not be calculated on a mechanical dollar for dollar cost of the financing or concession but the dollar amount of any

adjustment should approximate the market's reaction to the financing or concessions based on the Appraiser's judgment.

STATEMENT OF LIMITING CONDITIONS AND APPRAISER'S CERTIFICATION

CONTINGENT AND LIMITING CONDITIONS: The appraiser's certification that appears in the appraisal report is subject to the

following conditions:

1.  The appraiser will not be responsible for matters of a legal nature that affect either the property being appraised or the title to it.  The

appraiser assumes that the title is good and marketable and, therefore, will not render any opinions about the title.  The property is appraised

on the basis of it being under responsible ownership.

2.  The appraiser has provided a sketch in the appraisal report to show approximate dimensions of the improvements and the sketch is

included only to assist the reader of the report in visualizing the property and understanding the appraiser's determination of its size.

3.  The appraiser has examined the available flood maps that are provided by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (or other data

sources) and has noted in the appraisal report whether the subject site is located in an identified Special Flood Hazard Area.  Because the

appraiser is not a surveyor, he or she makes no guarantees, express or implied, regarding this determination.

4.  The appraiser will not give testimony or appear in court because he or she made an appraisal of the property in question, unless specific

arrangements to do so have been made beforehand.

5.  The appraiser has estimated the value of the land in the cost approach at its highest and best use and the improvements at their

contributory value.  These separate valuations of the land and improvements must not be used in conjunction with any other appraisal and

are invalid if they are so used.

6.  The appraiser has noted in the appraisal report any adverse conditions (such as, needed repairs, depreciation, the presence of hazardous

wastes, toxic substances, etc. ) observed during the inspection of the subject property or that he or she became aware of during the normal

research involved in performing the appraisal.  Unless otherwise stated in the appraisal report, the appraiser has no knowledge of any hidden

or unapparent condit ions of the property or adverse environmental condit ions (including the presence of hazardous wastes, toxic

substances, etc. ) that would make the property more or less valuable, and has assumed that there are no such conditions and makes no

guarantees or warranties, express or implied, regarding the condition of the property.  The appraiser will not be responsible for any such

conditions that do exist or for any engineering or testing that might be required to discover whether such conditions exist.  Because the

appraiser is not an expert in the field of environmental hazards, the appraisal report must not be considered as an environmental assessment

of the property.

7.  The appraiser obtained the information, estimates, and opinions that were expressed in the appraisal report from sources that he or she

considers to be reliable and believes them to be true and correct.  The appraiser does not assume responsibility for the accuracy of such

items that were furnished by other parties.

8.  The appraiser will not disclose the contents of the appraisal report except as provided for in the Uniform Standards of Professional

Appraisal Practice.

9.  The appraiser has based his or her appraisal report and valuation conclusion for an appraisal that is subject to satisfactory completion,

repairs, or alterations on the assumption that completion of the improvements will be performed in a workmanlike manner.

10.  The appraiser must provide his or her prior written consent before the lender/client specified in the appraisal report can distribute the

appraisal report (including conclusions about the property value, the appraiser's identity and professional designations, and references to

any professional appraisal organizations or the firm with which the appraiser is associated ) to anyone other than the borrower; the

mortgagee or its successors and assigns; the mortgage insurer; consultants; professional appraisal organizations; any state or federally

approved financial institution; or any department, agency, or instrumentality of the United States or any state or the District of Columbia;

except that the lender/client may distribute the property description section of the report only to data collection or reporting service(s)

without having to obtain the appraiser's prior written consent.  The appraiser's written consent and approval must also be obtained before

the appraisal can be conveyed by anyone to the public through advertising, public relations, news, sales, or other media.

Vacant Land Page 1 of 2

L19-363

54



File No.

APPRAISERS CERTIFICATION: The Appraiser certifies and agrees that:

1.  I have researched the subject market area and have selected a minimum of three recent sales of properties most similar and proximate

to the subject property for consideration in the sales comparison analysis and have made a dollar adjustment when appropriate to reflect the
market reaction to those items of significant variation.  If a significant item in a comparable property is superior to , or more favorable than,

the subject property, I have made a negative adjustment to reduce the adjusted sales price of the comparable and, if a significant item in a
comparable property is inferior to, or less favorable than the subject property, I have made a positive adjustment to increase the adjusted

sales price of the comparable.

2.  I have taken into consideration the factors that have an impact on value in my development of the estimate of market value in the
appraisal report.  I have not knowingly withheld any significant information from the appraisal report and I believe, to the best of my

knowledge, that all statements and information in the appraisal report are true and correct.

3.  I stated in the appraisal report only my own personal, unbiased, and professional analysis, opinions, and conclusions, which are subject
only to the contingent and Limiting Conditions specified in this form.

4.  I have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject to this report, and I have no present or prospective personal

interest or bias with respect to the participants in the transaction.  I did not base, either partially or completely, my analysis and/or the
estimate of market value in the appraisal report  on the race, color, religion, sex, handicap, familial status, or national origin of either the

prospective owners or occupants of the subject property or of the present owners or occupants of the properties in the vicinity of the
subject property.

5.  I have no present or contemplated future interest in the subject property, and neither my current or future employment nor my

compensation for performing this appraisal is contingent on the appraised value of the property.

6.  I was not required to report a predetermined value or direction in value that favors the cause of the client or any related party,
the amount of the value estimate, the attainment of a specific result, or the occurrence of a subsequent event in order to receive my

compensation and/or employment for performing the appraisal.  I did not base the appraisal report on a requested minimum valuation, a
specific valuation, or the need to approve a specific mortgage loan.

7.  I  performed this appraisal in conformity with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice that were adopted and

promulgated by the Appraisal Standards Board of The Appraisal Foundation and that were in place as of the effective date of this appraisal,
with the exception of the departure provision of those Standards, which does not apply.  I acknowledge that an estimate of a reasonable

time for exposure in the open market is a condition in the definition of market value and the estimate I developed is consistent with the
marketing time noted in the neighborhood section of this report, unless I have otherwise stated in the reconciliation section.

8 .   I  h a v e  p e r s o n a l l y  i n s p e c t e d  t h e  s u b j e c t  p r o p e r t y  a n d  t h e  e x t e r i o r  o f  a l l  p r o p e r t i e s  l i s t e d  a s  c o m p a r a b l e s

in the appraisal report.  I further certify that I have noted any apparent or known adverse conditions in the subject improvements, on the
subject site, or on any site within the immediate vicinity of the subject property of which I am aware and have made adjustments for these

adverse conditions in my analysis of the property value to the extent that I had market evidence to support them.  I have also commented
about the effect of the adverse conditions on the marketability of the subject property.

9.  I personally prepared all conclusions and opinions about the real estate that were set forth in the appraisal report.  If I relied on

significant professional assistance from any individual or individuals in the performance of the appraisal or the preparation of the appraisal
report, I have named such individual(s) and disclosed the specific tasks performed by them in the reconciliation section of this appraisal

report.  I certify that any individual so named is qualified to perform the tasks.  I have not authorized anyone to make a change to any item in
the report; therefore, if an unauthorized change is made to the appraisal report, I will take no responsibility for it.

SUPERVISORY APPRAISER'S CERTIFICATION: If a  supervisory  appraiser  signed the appraisal report, he or she certifies
and agrees that: I directly supervise the appraiser who prepared the appraisal report, have reviewed the appraisal report, agree with the

statements and conclusions of the appraiser, agree to be bound by the appraiser's certifications numbered 4 through 7 above, and am taking
full responsibility for the appraisal and the appraisal report.

ADDRESS OF PROPERTY APPRAISED:

APPRAISER: SUPERVISORY APPRAISER (only if required)

Signature: Signature:
Name: Name:

Date Signed: Date Signed:
State Certification #: State Certification #:

or State License #: or State License #:
State: State:

Expiration Date of Certification or License: Expiration Date of Certification or License:

Did Did Not Inspect Property

Vacant Land Page 2 of 2

LA Certified Residential Real Estate Appraiser #R0672

12/31/2020

LA

R0672

12/16/2019

Troy  LaPorte

TBD W. Port Street, Abbeville, LA, 70510

L19-363

55



USPAP ADDENDUM File No.

Borrower:
Property Address:
City: County: State: Zip Code:
Lender:

This report was prepared under the following USPAP reporting option:

Appraisal Report A written report prepared under Standards Rule 2-2(a).

Restricted Appraisal Report A written report prepared under Standards Rule 2-2(b).

APPRAISAL AND REPORT IDENTIFICATION

Reasonable Exposure Time

My opinion of a reasonable exposure time for the subject property at the market value stated in this report is:

Additional Certifications

I have performed NO services, as an appraiser or in any other capacity, regarding the property that is the subject of this report within the three-year
period immediately preceding acceptance of this assignment.

I HAVE performed services, as an appraiser or in another capacity, regarding the property that is the subject of this report within the three-year
period immediately preceding acceptance of this assignment. Those services are described in the comments below.

Additional Comments

APPRAISER: SUPERVISORY APPRAISER (only if required):

Signature: Signature:
Name: Name:
Date Signed: Date Signed:
State Certification #: State Certification #:
or State License #: or State License #:
or Other (describe): State #: State:
State: Expiration Date of Certification or License:
Expiration Date of Certification or License: Supervisory Appraiser inspection of Subject Property:
Effective Date of Appraisal: Did Not Exterior-only from street Interior and Exterior

Produced using ACI software, 800.234.8727 www.aciweb.com USPAP_14 04272015

L19-363

City of Abbeville

70510LAVermilionAbbeville

TBD W. Port Street

City of Abbeville

X

3-6 months.

X

Clarification of Intended Use and Intended User:

The Intended User of this appraisal report is the Client (City of Abbeville). The Intended Use is to evaluate the property that is the subject 

of this appraisal for a potential purchase transaction, subject to the stated Scope of Work, purpose of the appraisal, reporting 

requirements of this appraisal report form, and Definition of Market Value. No additional Intended Users are identified by the appraiser.

December 10, 2019

12/31/2020

LA

R0672

12/16/2019

Troy  LaPorte

56



LOCATION MAP

Borrower: File No.:
Property Address: Case No.:
City: State: Zip:
Lender: City of Abbeville

70510LAAbbeville

TBD W. Port Street

L19-363City of Abbeville

PO Box 876, Abbeville, LA 70511-0876
57



Borrower: File No.:
Property Address: Case No.:
City: State: Zip:
Lender: City of Abbeville

70510LAAbbeville

TBD W. Port Street

L19-363City of Abbeville

PO Box 876, Abbeville, LA 70511-0876
58



Borrower: File No.:
Property Address: Case No.:
City: State: Zip:
Lender: City of Abbeville

70510LAAbbeville

TBD W. Port Street

L19-363City of Abbeville

PO Box 876, Abbeville, LA 70511-0876
59



Borrower: File No.:
Property Address: Case No.:
City: State: Zip:
Lender: City of Abbeville

70510LAAbbeville

TBD W. Port Street

L19-363City of Abbeville

PO Box 876, Abbeville, LA 70511-0876
60



Form EDOCProduced using ACI software, 800.234.8727 www.aciweb.com

61



Form EDOCProduced using ACI software, 800.234.8727 www.aciweb.com

62



Form EDOCProduced using ACI software, 800.234.8727 www.aciweb.com

63



Form EDOCProduced using ACI software, 800.234.8727 www.aciweb.com

64



RESOLUTION NO.: R-20-___ 
 

BE IT KNOWN AND REMEMBERED, that pursuant to a public notice, a 

regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council of the City of Abbeville was held 

on the 7th day of January, 2020, commencing at 5:30 o’clock p.m. at City Hall, 

Abbeville, Louisiana, where the following resolution was moved, duly seconded, 

passed and adopted, to-wit: 

 

WHERE AS, the City is the owner of property known as the Abbeville RV 

Park, which is managed by Monar, Inc.; 

 

WHERE AS, the Heirs of F. N. Hollier are the owners of a certain 

undeveloped 6.76 acre tract, being known as Tract #6, which is located in Sections 

46 & 48, Township 12 Range 3 East;  

 

WHERE AS, said tract is adjacent, and to the north of Abbeville RV Park, 

and has frontage on Coulee Kinney; 

 

WHERE AS, the listing realtor has offered to sell the property to the City 

for $16,900.0, which is less than the appraised value; 

 

WHERE AS, acquisition of the property by the City creates a new 

opportunity for the City to enter into a new agreement with Monar, Inc., or amend 

the existing agreement, and thereby generate additional funds for the City. 

 

NOW, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Abbeville, 

acting as the governing authority of said city does hereby find that it is in the best 

interest of the City and its citizens to purchase said property; negotiate with Monar, 

Inc. regarding the management of same; and does hereby authorize Mark F. Piazza, 

Mayor, to do and perform all acts necessary to acquire said property see that it is 

utilized for a public purpose. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this 7th day of January, 2020. 

 

 

 

______________________________  

Hon. Mark F. Piazza, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

__________________________ 

Mr. Francis J. Plaisance 
Councilman at Large 

 

 

 65



______________________________ 

Ms. Roslyn R. White 
Councilwoman District A  

 

 

_____________________________ 

Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. 
Mayor Pro-Tem/Councilman District B 

 

 

______________________________ 

Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. 
Councilman District C 

 

 

______________________________ 

Ms. Terry Y. Broussard 
Councilwoman District D 

 

 

 

C E R T I F I C A T E 

 

 

I, Kathleen S. Faulk, the duly qualified and appointed Clerk of the City of 

Abbeville, State of Louisiana, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing 

resolution was duly approved at the regular meeting of the Mayor and City Council 

of the City of Abbeville held on January 7, 2020. 

 

THUS DONE AND SIGNED in Abbeville, Louisiana on this _____ day of 

January, 2020. 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Kathleen S. Faulk, City Secretary/Treasurer 

 

 
 

66



67



68



69



70



71



PLAN CHG #:
 
PAGE:

DATE:
 

H.013655 

       Airport

Add the removal and replacement of existing metal roof panels, wall panels and associated trim components to the Existing 

Office Lean-To Addition and add the removal and replacement of 20 existing low bay light fixtures with new LED fixtures.

 

QTY. AMOUNT QTY. AMOUNT

E6.

Existing Office Lean-To 
Addition:  Provide Labor 
and Material to remove and 
replace existing metal roof 
panels, wall panels and all 
associated trim 
components,

Lump Sum $7,446.25 1.00 $7,446.25 0.00 $0.00

E7.

LED Lighting:  Provide 
Labor and Material to 
remove and replace 20 
existing low bay light 
fixtures with new LED light 
fixtures,

Lump Sum $28,326.80 1.00 $28,326.80 0.00 $0.00

ORIGINAL 
CONTRACT

$209,564.00 NEW TOTAL
PREVIOUS 

TOTAL
PLAN 
CHANGE # 1

$13,916.96
AMOUNT 

OVER RUN
 

PLAN 
CHANGE #2

$35,773.05
AMOUNT 

UNDER RUN
ADD. DAYS 

REQ'D
PLAN 
CHANGE #3

$0.00
NEW 

AMOUNT
NEW DAYS 
CONTRACT

REQUESTED BY:

RESIDENT PROJECT ENGINEER:  DATE
Sellers & Associates, Inc.
ACCEPTED BY: RECOMMENDED:

CONTRACTOR DATE *AVIATION PROGRAM MANAGER DATE
L. Michaud Construction, LLC (Funding Not Guaranteed)

ACCEPTED BY: RECOMMENDED:

SPONSOR/AIRPORT OWNER DATE *Deputy Aviation Director DATE
City of Abbeville
ACCEPTED BY: APPROVED

OTHER - NAME/TITLE DATE DATE

ITEM UNIT

(or Program Manager if State Approved Funding not exceeded)

A.I.P. NO.

PLAN CHANGE AND/OR SPECIAL AGREEMENT

CITYVermilion

Rehabilitation of the Main Hangar
S.P.NO.

240

$35,773.05

LAST REVISION

ENGINEERS DESCRIPTION, JUSTIFICATION AND ESTIMATED COST OF PROPOSED REVISION (ATTACH ADDITIONAL SHEETS  IF NECESSARY)

Abbeville

 

120

AND OTHER PARTIES TO THE CONTRACT SIGN ONE ORIGINAL, AND FORWARD TO THE PROGRAM MANAGER FOR DOTD APPROVALS.  HE/SHE WILL ALSO FAX A COPY TO THE FAA PROGRAM MANAGER 

N/A

PARISH

$259,254.01

  

AIRPORT NAME     Abbeville Chris Crusta Memorial 

ITEM NO.

Signature of this document by LADOTD represenitive(s) does NOT GUARANTEE FUNDING, but instead concurs that the changes are appropriate.

$0.00

2

 

 

December 17, 2019

1 of 1

UNIT PRICE

(817) 222-5988 FOR THEIR CONCURRENCE.

$35,773.05

RESIDENT ENGINEER WILL FAX DRAFT COPY TO PROGRAM MANAGER AT (225) 274-4181 FOR REVIEW.  AFTER REVIEW OF FORM AND SCOPE, ENGINEER WILL HAVE CONTRACTOR, AIRPORT SPONSOR

* FUNDING NOT GUARANTEED

*Deputy Under Secretary, Intermodal Transportation

LOUISIANA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION & DEVELOPMEN T

AVIATION SECTION

IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED TO PERFORM AND ACCEPT THE ABOVE REVISIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH ORIGINAL CONTRACT AND APPLICABLE SPECIFICATIONS AT THE ABOVE PRICES. 

APPROVAL OF THIS PLAN CHANGE IS SUBJECT TO AND CONDITIONED UPON APPROVAL BY OTHER PARTICIPATING AGENCIES AND BECOMES OFFICIAL UPON DISTRIBUTION.

THIS REVISION

72


	Top
	1. Ratify December bills
	Bills paid in December 2019

	2. Minutes
	December 3, 2019 Committee meeting
	December 17, 2019 regular meeting
	December 3, 2019 regular meeting
	12-17-19 personnel inteviews

	1. 1603 Charity Street
	1603 Charity street picture 1
	1603 Charity street picture 2

	2. MLK Day
	3. Coulee Kinney property purchase
	RV Park addtional property appraisal
	Resolution property purchase

	4. 608 E. Oak Street asbestos removal
	BID FOR REMOVAL OF ASBESTOS 608 E. OAK ST

	5. LCDBG payment #7
	6. Plan change #2 Main Hangar Rehab
	9144 Plan Change (Change Order) #2

	1. No old business
	Bottom

